
Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
March 17, 2016 
3950 S. Country Club Road  
Tucson, Arizona 85714 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Mr. Neuman called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm. 
 
• Attendance 
 
Present: 
Tamara Barrick, Pima Paws for Life  
Nancy Emptage, Animal Welfare Coalition  
Pat Hubbard, Humane Society of Southern Arizona 
Jack Neuman, Chair, PACC Volunteers 
Jane Schwerin, People for Animals in the Prevention of Cruelty and Neglect 
Gail Smith, MD, Board of Health 
Marcy Flanagan, Health Department Deputy Director, Ex-Offico 
 
Absent:  
Pat Jacobs, Tucson Kennel Club 
Sophia Kaluzniacki, DVM, SPCA of AZ, Inc 
Derek Marshall, Public Education 
Helen Mendelsohn, Disabled Community 
Erin O'Donnell, DVM, Southern AZ Veterinary Medical Association 
 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Adoption of the Minutes  
 
• Adoption of the February 18, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 
Ms. Schwerin said her discussion on page five of the draft minutes was recorded inaccurately in that it 
states: “However, Ms. Schwerin’s point was dogs which should be declared dangerous…” when it 
should reflect it was former Mayor Miller’s point she was bringing up.  Ms. Schwerin chose to edit 
the text verbally in lieu of providing a written edit as requested by Mr. Neuman. 
 
The motion was made and seconded (Smith/Emptage) that the February 18, 2016 meeting minutes be 
adopted with the aforementioned edit.  The motion carried (6-0).   
 

3. Animal Care Center Budget Discussion 
 
Ms. Flanagan introduced Garrett Hancock, Health Department Business Manager, who utilized the 
attached PowerPoint presentation to explain how budgets are done in Pima County.   
 
In June of 1980 Arizona voters amended the Arizona Constitution prescribing an expenditure 
limitation for each county, city, town, and community college district.  The purpose of the expenditure 
limitation is to control expenditures and limit future increases in spending to adjustments for inflation; 
deflation; population growth.  There are exceptions for natural or manmade disasters or if approved by 
two-thirds of the governing board and a majority of the qualified voters.  The budget process cycle 

Approved in part 4-21-16 
Item 3 approved 5-19-16 
 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
March 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

begins in October for the fiscal year which begins the following July.  Mr. Hancock discussed the 
budget timeline and in-process adjustments that occur, often due to State cost transfers and insurance 
cost changes.  In May the Board of Supervisors passes a tentative budget, which sets the budget limit, 
and then the final budget adoption is in June.  To come up with the Department’s total budget Finance 
starts with the current adopted budget figure and makes adjustments for any known differences.  
Anything in excess of the adjusted figure has to be pursued as a supplemental budget request and most 
of those do not get approved.   
 
PACC’s budget is divided into three parts: the PACC special revenue fund (fund 2001), the PACC 
grants fund (fund 2042), and the PACC bequests fund (fund 2131).  Mr. Neuman asked which fund 
general donations go into.  Mr. Hancock said donations go into fund 2001; while a grant from 
PetSmart goes into fund 2042; and if someone dies and leaves PACC their house it (the money from 
the house) goes into fund 2131.  Spending authority is based on projections.  Mr. Neuman asked what 
happens if the projected revenue amount is exceeded.  Money taken in in excess of the expenditure 
authority goes into an account.  Mr. Hancock said it cannot be spent during the current fiscal year 
because it is not in the budget, but can be budgeted in future years.  He gave the example of the 
bequest money coming in and being included in budgets going forward, but not in the budget year the 
money was received.  Ms. Emptage asked about how general donations are divided out and Mr. 
Hancock said a portion goes to cover costs attributed to the various municipalities.  Once the County 
puts money into PACC’s fund, the County cannot take it back.  Dr. Smith asked if surplus funds in 
PACC’s account carried over to another year result in the County reducing the general fund 
contribution.  Mr. Hancock said in theory the County could do so, but has not.  He continued that this 
year is the first year of his three years with the Health Department wherein PACC is not over budget.  
PACC’s overages have been covered by the Health Department’s budget in years past.  Ms. Barrick 
said that the Committee has trouble accepting that donations are being rolled into PACC’s budget to 
cover operations instead of for the animals specifically.  Ms. Hubbard asked if money given for a 
specific purpose, such as spay and neuter, actually goes for that purpose.  Mr. Hancock said it does.  
He continued that the County’s financial management system tracks all the money and has stops 
within the system to prevent spending beyond authorized thresholds for specific master agreements 
(contracts) and commodities.  Ms. Schwerin asked, “Let’s say I donate $500 and I earmark it for 
spaying and neutering, and you said it would be spent for spaying and neutering; but the big question 
is will it be spent for $500 more spaying and neutering than would have been done had I not given 
that money?”  Ms. Flanagan responded that it would be above and beyond.  Ms. Schwerin asked why 
people should give donations for things PACC is already doing.  Mr. Hancock said because PACC is 
traditionally over budget and could not do all the things they want to do without the donations.  Mr. 
Neuman said there is a pie of money which comes into the County; asserted that the community wants 
PACC to have a larger portion of the pie; and continued that donations should not be considered part 
of the pie.  Mr. Hancock said he, PACC and the Health Department administration all agree PACC 
needs more money.  He went on to relay that prior to PACC’s tent going up the Board of Supervisors 
granted an extremely rare mid-year adjustment to cover the additional costs associated with erecting 
the tent, but PACC still went over budget due to the additional operating cost associated with housing 
the additional animals in the tent.   
 
PACC’s fiscal year 2015/2016, current, budget is $8.8 million with projected revenues of just under 
$6.5 million.  The difference is made up by the general fund subsidy.  Next year’s budget is over 
$9.175 million.  Dr. Smith asked if the revenues include donations; Mr. Hancock said they include 
anticipated donations based on trends, but would not include a bequest.  In response to a question Mr. 
Hancock explained grants have reporting requirements and audits. 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
March 17, 2016 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
4. Welfare and Dangerous Dog Cases from January and Recent Animal Care Center Holds Snapshot  

 
Ms. Schwerin referred to welfare case one and said the officer recommended the owner get kennel 
runs for outside and crates for inside.  She asserted that kennel runs are bad enough and crates are 
even worse.  She said crates are cruel and she wished officers would not recommend crates. 
 
Regarding the third case, Ms. Schwerin asked why the case is closed if the dog is not licensed.  
Supervisor Neil Konst said the situation is now in Justice Court’s hands.  Ms. Emptage pointed out 
that at the last meeting the Committee recommended owners be required to license their dogs within 
30 days of a no-license citation.  Ms. Flanagan said the Committee’s recommendation has been 
forwarded to the County Attorney’s Office.  Supervisor Konst added the owner may have given the 
dog away and would therefore no longer needs to license it.  
 
Ms. Schwerin said case four had dogs without water and the owner was allowed to redeem one of the 
dogs without it being neutered and she asked why the dog wasn’t neutered.  Supervisor Konst said all 
five dogs were given up to PACC, four were confiscated and the fifth was brought in. 
 
Ms. Schwerin said case five was very bad.  She said a dog was on a tie-out without water or shelter, 
which indicates a very bad owner.  The owner received citations and the dog was eventually returned 
to the owner and the question was asked why.  Supervisor Konst replied the report had nothing about 
the dog being in distress or bad shape.  There has not been a follow-up visit. 
 
Ms. Schwerin said case seven included a badly injured dog and the owner surrendered the dogs, but 
she added the owner should not be allowed to own animals.  Supervisor Konst reported two of the 
dogs were euthanized and one died; he added the owner is on the do-not-adopt list.  Ms. Emptage 
asked if the list is shared with other agencies and Konst replied it is not.  Ms. Emptage requested that 
topic be an agenda item going forward. 
 

5. Call to the Audience  
 
There were no speakers from the audience.  
 

6. Management Report 
 
Ms. Flanagan reported on two topics.   
 
• Accreditation Site Visit 
 
The Department is going through the accreditation process and had a site visit last week and it went 
well.  There were a number of positives noted by the accreditation body: dedication and passion, high 
function, good leadership, good work with community partners, and good relationship with 
governance.  Areas for improvement mentioned were: there were a couple ADA accommodations on 
the second floor they wanted addressed, having a data analysis person who can make reports to help 
operational efficiencies, and having a data analysis system.  The Department should hear back on the 
accreditation in April or May.   
 
 
 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
March 17, 2016 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

• Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee Ordinance Change 
 
The ordinance went to the Board of Supervisors on Tuesday.  Ms. Flanagan said that the Board made 
some minor changes.  They added that the Committee will include a member from the Board of 
Health.  The terms of the current Committee members will end at the end of June this year, as opposed 
to the phase out originally proposed.  And the County Administrator appointed staff position will be a 
non-voting position.  
 
Ms. Schwerin commented that four individuals, including her, will have their terms expire earlier than 
originally proposed, originally the end of June 2018.  She attributed this change to comments by Mr. 
Neuman at the Board of Supervisors meeting.   
 

7. Old Business 
 

• Shortening Lengthy Animal Holds 
 
Ms. Flanagan said [Deputy County Attorney] Paula [Perrera] is on her final revision of language 
aimed at reducing these holds, but it was not done in time for the meeting, so Ms. Flanagan will bring 
the language to the next meeting for the Committee’s review, then to the Board of Health, then to the 
Board of Supervisors. 
 

8. New Business 
 
• Introduction of New Volunteer Coordinator 

 
Ms. Flanagan introduced the New Volunteer Coordinator Gina Hansen.  Ms. Hansen came to PACC 
from the Humane Society.  She briefly listed programs she ran at the Humane Society and expressed 
her desire to bring new programs to PACC, bring in more volunteers and do anything to help the 
animals. 
 
• Pima Animal Care Center Enforcement Officer Numbers 
 
Mr. Neuman said he was moving this item to next month’s agenda, but requested information from 
staff regarding how the enforcement officer numbers compare to numbers from the 60s and 70s and 
how numbers compare to the community population numbers.  PACC Operations Manager Jose 
Ocano said there are two final candidates for the enforcement manager position; and he is presently 
looking at how enforcement operations are handled and how they can be made more efficient.   
 

9. Donations: A total of $24,655.02 in donations was received during the month of February. 
 
Ms. Flanagan commented that donations not specified for a particular purpose are used to offset 
medical costs; and that donations have to be projected as revenue to be budgeted in to be able to be 
used. 
 

10. Complaints and Commendations: There were no complaints and no commendations received by staff 
during February. 
 
There was no discussion on this agenda item. 



Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee 
Minutes 
March 17, 2016 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
11. Call to the Audience 

 
There were no speakers from the audience.   
 

12. Announcements, Schedules and Proposed Agenda Items 
 
Mr. Neuman said a number of volunteers have complained about adoption criteria and wants this to be 
an agenda item for the next meeting. 
 
Ms. Emptage said she is still working on compiling applicable animal care statutes and will eventually 
be able to present it to the Committee.  
 
Dr. Smith suggested paper conservation be considered at some point going forward. 
 

13. Next Meeting – April 21, 2016 
 

The next meeting will be at the Abrams building. 
 
14. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 7:06 pm. 




































































































































	PCACAC Minutes 03-17-16 APVD FULLY
	Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee

	2 PCACAC Packet 3-17-16 re-redacted w Fully APVD Minutes
	PCACAC Minutes 03-17-16 APVD FULLY
	Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee

	2 PCACAC Packet 3-17-16 re-redacted w Partial Minutes
	PCACAC Minutes 03-17-16 APVD In Part
	Pima County Animal Care Advisory Committee

	2 PCACAC Packet 3-17-16 re-redacted





